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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 09-60033-CR-COHN

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
vs.
UBS AG

Defendant.
/

DEFERRED PROSECUTION AGREEMENT

The United States Department of Justice Tax Division and the United States Attorney’s Office
for the Southern District of Florida (the “Government”) and the defendant UBS AG (“UBS”), by its
Group General Counsel and undersigned attorneys, pursuant to the authority granted to them by its

‘Board of Directors in the form of a Board Resolution, attached hereto as Exhibit A, hereby enter into this
Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the “Agreement™).

The Criminal Information

1. UBS will waive indictment and co.nsent to the filing of a one-count Information (the
“Information”) in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida (the “Court™)
charging UBS with participating in a conspiracy to defraud the United States and its agency the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”) in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371. A copy of the Information is attached hereto

as Exhibit B.



Acceptance of Responsibility for Violation of Law
2. UBS acknowledges and accepts that, as set forth in the Statement of Facts, attached
hereto as Exhibit C:

Beginning in 2000 and continuing until 2007, UBS, through certain private bankers and
managers in the United States cross-border business, participated in a scheme to defraud
the United States and its agency, the IRS, by actively assisting or otherwise facilitating a
namber of United States individual taxpayers in establishing accounts at UBS ina
manner designed to conceal the United States taxpayers’ ownership or beneficial interest
in these accounts. In this regard, these private bankers and managers facilitated the
creation of accounts in the names of offshore companies, allowing United States
taxpayers to evade reporting requirements and to trade in securities as well as other
financial transactions (including making loans for the benefit of, or other asset transfers
directed by, the United States taxpayers, and using credit or debit cards linked to the
offshore company accounts).

In connection with the establishment of these offshore company accounts, UBS private
bankers and managers accepted and included in UBS’s account records IRS Forms W-
8BEN (or UBS’s substitute forms) provided by the directors of the offshore companies
which represented under penalty of perjury that these companies were the beneficial
owners, for United States federal income tax purposes, of the assets in the UBS accounts.
In certain cases, the IRS Forms W-8BEN (or UBS’s substitute forms) were false or
misleading in that the United States taxpayer who owned the offshore company actually
directed and controlled the management and disposition of the assets in the company
accounts and/or otherwise functioned as the beneficial owner of the assets in disregard of
the formalities of the purported corporate ownership.

Additionally, these private bankers and managers would actively assist or otherwise
facilitate certain undeclared United States taxpayers, who these private bankers and
managers knew or should have known were evading United States taxes, by meeting with
these clients in the United States and communicating with them via United States
jurisdictional means on a regular and recurring basis with respect to their UBS undeclared
accounts. This enabled the United States clients to conceal from the IRS the active
trading of securities held in these accounts and/or the making of payments and/or asset
transfers to or from these accounts. Certain UBS executives and managers who knew of
the conduct described in this paragraph continued to operate and expand the United States
cross-border business because of its profitability, It was not until August 2007 that
executives and managers made a decision to wind down the United States cross-border
business. Executives and managers delayed this decision due to concerns that it would be
costly, that it was not likely a third party buyer of the business could be found, and it
could damage UBS’s business reputation.



3. Pursuant to this Agreement, UBS agrees that it shall pay to the United States a total of
$780,000,000 (the “Settlement Amount”), which includes (1) $380,000,000 in disgorgement of the
profits from maintaining thé United States cross-border business from 2001 through 2008, of which
$200,000,000 will be separately paid to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) pursuant to a payment schedule set forth in the Consent Order and Final Judgment, and (ii)
$400,000,000 for: federal backup withholding tax required to be withheld by UBS with respect to the
Disclosed Accounts for calendar years 2001 through 2008; interest and penalties; and restitution for
unpaid taxes, together with interest thereon, for undeclared United States taxpayers who were actively
assisted or facilitated by UBS private bankers wﬁo et with these clients in the United States and
communicated with them via United States jurisdictional means on a regular and recurring basis as
described in paragraph 4 of the Statement of Facts (as agreed to more fully in a separate letter between
the IRS and UBS). In recognition of the current international financial crisis and after consultation with
the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Government will forgo additional penalties. In addition to
the $200,000,000 to be paid to the SEC pursuant to the Consent Order and Final Judgment as noted
above, the balance of the Settlement Amount shall be paid to DOJ/IRS in installments as follows:
within 30 days of the Court’s approval of this Agreement (the “Approval Date™), $115,000,000; six
months after the Approval Date, $40,000,000; at the one-year anniversary of the Approval Date,
$180,000,000; and at the one and one-half year anniversary of the Approval Date, $245,000,000. UBS
shall have the option to accelerate all payments due under this Agreement. Further UBS has the option,
as needed, at any time before the one and one-half year anniversary of the Approval Date, of extending
the final payment by up to the four-year anniversary of the Approval Date by providing written notice to

the Government,



between UBS and the Government. No modifications or additions to this Agreement, in whole

27.  This Agreement sets forth all of the terms of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement

or in part, shall be valid unless they are set forth in writing and signed by the Government,

UBS’s attorneys, and a duly authorized representative of UBS.

By:

By:

UBS AG
Defendant

MARKUS DIETHELM, ESQ.

Group General Counsel

WACHTELL, LIPTON, ROSEN, & KATZ

JOHN F. SAVARESE, ESQ.
Counsel to UBS AG

RALPH M. LEVENE, ESQ.
Counsel to UBS AG

Respectfully submitted,

(bl s,

JOHNX. DICICCO, ESQ.
Actifyg Assistant Attorney General
United States Department of Justice
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IS?/IN M. DOWNING, ESQ.

nior Litigation Counsel
MICHAEL P. BEN’ARY, ESQ.
Trial Attorney

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA, ESQ.
United States Attorney
Southern District of Florida

JEFFREY A.NEIMAN, ESQ.
Assistant United States Attorney
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Group General Counsel
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JOHN F. SAVARESE, ESQ.
Counsel to UBS AG
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Counsel to UBS AG

Respectfully submitted,

JOHN A. DICICCO, ESQ.

Acting Assistant Attorney General
United States Department of Justice
Tax Division

KEVIN M. DOWNING, ESQ.
Senior Litigation Counsel
MICHAEL P. BEN’ARY, ESQ.
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R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA, ESQ.
United States Attorney

Southern Distrjct of Florida
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JRFFREY A. NEIMAN, ESQ.
Assistant United States Attorney




27.  This Agreement sets forth all of the terms of the Deferred Prosecution Agreement
between UBS and the Government. No fnodiﬁcations or additions to this Agreement, in whole or in
part, shall be valid unless they are set forth in writing and signed by the Government, UBS’s attorneys,
and a duly authorized representative of UBS,

JOHN A. DICICCO
Acting Assistant Attorney General

United States Department of Justice
Tax Division

By:

Kevin M. Downing
Senior Litigation Counsel
Michael P. Ben’Ary
Trial Attorney

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA
United States Attorney
Southern District of Florida

By:

Jeffrey A. Neiman, Esq.
Assistant United States Attorney

UBS AG
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Markus Diethelm, Esq.
Group General Counsel

Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz
Counselto U G

ke

By: /M
CZB‘.’ avarese 2,
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EXHIBIT C



EXHIBIT C TO DEFERRED
PROSECUTION AGREEMENT

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. UBS AG, a corporation organized under the laws of Switzerland (“UBS”), directly and
through its subsidiaries, operates a global financial services business. As one of the biggest
banks in Switzerland and largest wealth managers in the world, UBS provides banking,
wealth management, asset management and investment banking services, among other
services, around the globe, including through branches located in the United States
(including the Southern District of Florida).

2. Effective January 1, 2001, UBS entered into a Qualified Intermediary Agreement (the “QI
Agreement”) with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). The Qualified Intermediary
(“QI”) regime provides a comprehensive framework for U.S. information reporting and tax
withholding by a non-U.S. financial institution that acts as a QI with respect to customer
accounts held by non-U.S. persons and by U.S. persons. The QI Agreement is designed to
help ensure that non-U.S. persons are subject to the proper U.S. withholding tax rates and
that U.S. persons are properly paying U.S. tax, in each case, with respect to U.S. securities
held in an account with the QL. QI agreements were subject to a “documentation transition
period” announced by the IRS in Notice 2001-4 (Jan. 8, 2001) that gave Qls until the end of
2002 to achieve “substantial compliance” with the provisions of the QI Agreement. The QI
Agreement expressly recognizes that a non-U.S. financial institution such as UBS may be
prohibited by foreign law, such as Swiss law, from disclosing an account helder’s name or
other identifying information. In general, a Q1 subject to such foreign-law restrictions must
request that its U.S. clients either (a) grant the QI authority to disclose the client’s identity
or disclose himself by mandating the QI to provide an 1RS Form W-9 completed by the
account holder, or (b} grant the QI authority to sell all U.S. securities of the account holder
(in the case of accounts opened before January 1, 2001) or to exclude all U.S. securities
from the account (in the case of accounts opened on or after January 1, 2001). Following
the effective date of the Q1 Agreement, a sale of U.S, securities; if any, held by a U.S.
person who chose not to provide a QI with an IRS Form W-9 was subject to tax information
reporting on an anonymous basis and backup withholding.

3. For some time, UBS has operated a U.S. cross-border business through which its private
bankers have provided cross-border securities-related and investment advisory services to
U.S.-resident private clients who maintained accounts at UBS in Switzerland and other
locations outside the United States. UBS was not registered as a broker-dealer or an
investment adviser pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940, and the private bankers and managers engaged in this U.S. cross-
border business were not affiliated with a registered broker-dealer or investment adviser.
The Securities Exchange Act and Investment Advisers Act restricted the activities that UBS
(and the private bankers and managers engaged in the U.S. cross-border business), absent
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4.B.
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registration, could engage in with such U.S. private clients either while in the United States
or by using U.S. jurisdictional means such as telephone, fax, mail or e-mail, including the
provision of investment advice and the soliciting of securities orders. During the relevant
time period from 2001 through 2007, UBS private bankers in this U.S. cross-border
business traveled to the United States to meet with certain U.S. private clients, and
communicated by telephone, fax, mail and/or e-mail with such U.S. private clients while
those clients were in the United States. Certain of these U.S. clients had chosen not to
provide UBS with an IRS Form W-9 with respect to their UBS accounts and thereby
concealed such accounts from the IRS,

Beginning in 2000 and continuing until 2007, UBS, through certain private bankers and

- managers in the U.S. cross-border business, participated in a scheme to defraud the United

States and its agency, the IRS, by actively assisting or otherwise facilitating a number of
U.S. individual taxpayers in establishing accounts at UBS in a manner designed to conceal
the U.S. taxpayers’ ownership or beneficial interest in said accounts. In this regard, said
private bankers and managers facilitated the creation of such accounts in the names of
offshore companies, allowing such U.S. taxpayers to evade reporting requirements and to
trade in securities as well as other financial transactions (including making loans for the
benefit of, or other asset transfers directed by, the U.S. taxpayers, and using credit or debit
cards linked to the offshore company accounts).

In connection with the establishment of such offshore company accounts, UBS private
bankers and managers accepted and included m UBS’s account records IRS Forms W-
8BEN (or UBS’s substitute forms) provided by the directors of the offshore companies
which represented under penalty of perjury that such companies were the beneficial owners,
for U.S. federal income tax purposes, of the assets in the UBS accounts. In certain cases,
the IRS Forms W-8BEN (or UBS’s substitute forms) were false or misleading in that the
U.S. taxpayer who owned the offshore company actually directed and controlled the
management and disposition of the assets in the company accounts and/or otherwise
functioned as the beneficial owner of such assets in disregard of the formalities of the

purported corporate ownership.

Additionally, said private bankers and managers would actively assist or otherwise facilitate
certain undeclared U.S. taxpayers, who such private bankers and managers knew or should
have known were evading United States taxes, by meeting with such clients in the United
States and communicating with them via U.S. jurisdictional means on a regular and
recurring basis with respect to their UBS undeclared accounts. This enabled the U.S.
clients to conceal from the IRS the active trading of securities held in such accounts and/or
the making of payments and/or asset transfers to or from such accounts, Certain UBS
executives and managers who knew of the conduct described in this paragraph continued to
operate and expand the U.S. cross-border business because of its profitability. It was not
until August 2007 that executives and managers made a decision to wind down the U.S.
cross-border business. Executives and managers delayed this decision due to concerns that
it would be costly, that it was not likely a third party buyer of the business could be found,
and it could damage UBS’s business reputation.



